V.

VL.

VII.

CAHTS

CAPITAL ARER TRANSIT SYSTEM

Connecting you to what matters.

REGULAR MEETING

OF THE
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
CAPITAL AREA TRANSIT SYSTEM
AND
PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION

JANUARY 15, 2019

4:30 pm
BREC Administration Building 6201 Florida Boulevard
Commission Room
Baton Rouge, LA 70806

AGENDA

CALL TO ORDER: Mr. Jim Brandt

ROLL CALL: Ms. Amie McNaylor

APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF DECEMBER 18, 2018 MEETING: Mr. Jim Brandt
PRESIDENT’S ANNOUNCEMENTS: Mr. Jim Brandt

SAFETY MOMENT: Ms. Renee Simpson

ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS

1 Executive and Financial Report: Mr. Bill Deville and Executive Staff
COMMITTEE REPORTS AND ANY ACTION THEREON

Finance & Executive: Mr. Jim Brandt

Technical, Policies & Practices: Dr. Peter Breaux (no meeting held)
Audit: Mr. Kahli Cohran (no meeting held)

Planning: Mr. Kevin O’Gorman (no meeting held)
Community Relations: Ms. Linda Perkins (no meeting held)

oo



Vill. ACTION ITEMS

1. Consideration of approval to extend adjuster claims services contract
with Brown Claims Management Group, LLC

2. Consideration of adoption of 2019 CATS Strategic Plan

3. Consideration of approval for CEO to waive passenger fares from
February 24 through March 2, 2019

4. Consideration of approval to award the contract for the Construction of
the Cortana Transit Center ITB
X. PUBLIC COMMENT

Xl. ADJOURNMENT

Individuals having questions regarding the meeting should contact Amie McNaylor,
225.389.8920, 2250 Florida Boulevard, Baton Rouge, LA 70802.

Individuals needing special accommodations during this meeting should contact
Karen Denman {225} 389-8920, Ext. 1504, 2250 Florida Boulevard, Baton Rouge, LA
70802, no later than 4:00 p.m. on the Monday immediately preceding the Tuesday
meeting.

Y




V.

CATS

CRPITAL ARER TRANSIT SYSTEM

Connecting you to what matters.

MEETING OF THE
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF
CAPITAL AREA TRANSIT SYSTEM
AND
PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION
DECEMBER 18, 2018
4:30 p.m.
BREC Administration Building
6201 Florida Boulevard
Baton Rouge, LA 70806

MINUTES
CALL TO ORDER: Mr. Jim Brandt
Mr. Brandt called the meeting to order.
ROLL CALL

Present at the meeting were Messrs. Brandt, Breaux, Cohran, O’Gorman
and Thomas and Mss. Green, Perkins, and Pierre. Mr. Bellue was absent.
Also present were Mr. Bill Deville, CEO; Mr. Darrell Brown, CAO; other
CATS staff; Creighton Abadie, CATS attorney; and members of the public.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF NOVEMBER 13, 2018 MEETING

Ms. Perkins moved to approve the minutes of the November 13, 2018,
meeting and Ms. Pierre seconded the motion. Mr. Brandt invited public
comment and there was none. The motion passed unanimously with no
abstentions.

PRESIDENT’S ANNOUNCEMENTS
Mr. Brandt provided a review of the public comment process.
Mr. Brandt noted that CATS employees would be hosting a Christmas party

on Thursday, December 20" from 12:00 p.m. until 4:00 p.m. and noted that
all board members were invited to attend.



Vi,

Mr. Brandt reminded the members that annual officer elections would take
place in February and any member wishing to hold an officer position
should let the Nominating Committee Chair Ms. Green know of their
interest.

SAFETY MOMENT
Ms. Simpson shared a safety moment centered on slips, trips, and falls.

ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS

1. Executive and Financial Report: Mr eville and Executive Staff

hires in November:
one internal

at there were 1,756.3 miles
5,340.7 miles between road calls.

various legal requirements to be met, and the sale may be final in the
second quarter of 2019.

The Cortana Transit Center construction solicitation has been posted
and a pre-bid conference has been held. The projected milestones
are as follows: bid advertisement — December 2018; contract award -
January 2019; begin revenue service — May, 2019.




Vi, COMMITTEE

1.

CATS recently participated in a series of stakeholder workshops
conducted by HNTB on behalf of the City-Parish in conjunction with
CATS and the Redevelopment Authority. Phase One of the outreach
focused on elected leaders and community stakeholders to outline
the scope and intent of the redefinition study, obtain concerns, and
map out proposed funding structures.

The Service improvement Plan is scheduled for implementation on
February 24, 2019; this date coincides with the first of three run-cuts
outlined in the labor agreement. Staff is working to ensure this
deadline is met and that customers are fully educated on the new
service before the implementation o

federal revenue and $369,
$2,149,143 in operating reve
agency has collected $24,938,

ts Manager has been
xisting award funds with

S AND ANY ACTION THEREON

Finance and Executive: Mr. Jim Brandt

Mr. Brandt referred the members to the minutes of the committee’s
December 13" meeting in their packets. He shared the highlights and
noted that the action items would be considered later in the meeting.
He noted that all items except the general liability insurance came
with a unanimous recommendation; this item comes with no
recommendation to allow for the negotiation of final pricing. He let




VIlIl. ACTION ITEM

1.

the members know that the 2019 Budget comes with a unanimous
recommendation for adoption.

Technical, Policies and Practices: Dr. Peter Breaux

Dr. Breaux referred the members to the minutes of the committee’s
December 10'" meeting in their packets. He shared the highlights and
noted that the policy being considered comes with a unanimous
recommendation from the TPP Committee.

Audit: Mr. Cohran
Mr. Cohran noted the committee
Planning: Mr. Kevin O’Gorm
Mr. O’Gorman referred ther

committee’s December 141"
highlights and not:

: -She shared the highlights of
e was able to attend a customer

: ys before and after the holiday were very
2 five complaints for the month and the on-time
.6%. '

Consideration of amendment of CATS Settlement and Judgment
Payment Policy

Per the policy adopted by the board, CATS pays fieet liability claims
on a quarterly basis. The current annual amount CATS allocates for
this fund has been $200,000; this year, the amount that is budgeted
is $300,000.




Mr. Abadie noted that each claim receives a prorated payment
qguarterly and once the balance due for a ciaim reaches $1,000 or
less, the claim is paid in full. Mr. Abadie recommends that the pay in
full amount be raised to $2,000, which would allow the agency to
close more claims. He noted that there are approximately 25
settlements that would close under this increased amount.

Mr. Abadie stated that he would research whether or not it would be
feasible and advantageous to increase the amount to $5,000.

ution be adopted and Mr,
invited public comment and
imously with no

Ms. Pierre moved that the following r
Cohran seconded the motion. Mr. B
there was none. The motion pass
abstentions.

RESOLUTION OF CATS B 1S
AMENDING EARLIER ADOPTED PROCEDURE FOR PAYING

BE IT RESOLVED
Transit System th

ythen any settlements (or the remaining
o be paid on individual settlements) which are
less per claimant shall be paid from the balance in

re are not adequate funds available, such claimants
shall'be paid on a prorata basis. If funds remain in the
Settlement Account after the payment of these $2,000.00 or
less claims, then the amount of the balance shall be divided by
the total monetary amount of the settlements then payable and
the resulting percentage will be applied to each settlement to
calculate the amount to be paid to each claimant. This
procedure will be repeated at the end of each quarter.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this amendment shall be effective




for payments made at the end of the first quarter of 2019.
Consideration of award of general liability insurance contract

Mr. Brown shared that this is a contract for the general liability,
employee benefit liability, management liability, employment
practices liability, law enforcement liability, property, crime, and
inland marine insurances. He noted that CATS sought quotes with
the help of Arthur J. Gallagher, the agent of record. Two firms
provided quotes; Travelers Insurance, t rrent provider, and
Stone Insurance, Inc.

ne. provided lower
nce being $11,558.
, staff was able to

Mr. Brown shared that Stone Insu
premiums than the current pr
After discussion at the F&E
remove the taxes ~ $1,236

invited public comment
animously with no

hat many of the details included therein already
forms, but they have not been compiled into one
ared that an internal committee has been meeting

hours to creatlng this plan.

It was noted that each emergency scenario is self-contained and has
_its own appendix.

The committee responsible for the Plan will meet quarterly to review
the plan and update it as necessary. There will also be a meeting
after any emergency where the plan is activated; this will help




determine what worked, what did not, and what revisions need to be
made.

Ms. Eckert noted that the plan will be available on the employee
portal and there will also be physical copies in all the departments
for easy access.

Mr. Thomas moved that the CATS Emergency Preparedness and
Recovery Plan be adopted and Dr. Breaux seconded the motion. Mr.
Brandt invited public comment and there:was one. Reverend Alexis
Anderson inquired how the plan will seminated to the public
and how it will be distributed to signage. The motion carried
uhanimously with no abstentions

t Plan; a $400,000
services; the first-ever

f operators. The agency will continue its efforts to
logy and this inciudes the implementation of a new,

CATS will continue to focus attention on the items in the Capital
Improvements and Investments Plan (CIIP). To that end, the agency
will kick-off several projects, including a Bus Rapid Transit (BRT)
route on Plank Road, as well as several transit centers. The CIIP cails
for the acquisition of sixteen revenue and four non-revenue vehicles
to obtain an average fixed route fleet age of less than four years.




Ms. Williams shared that there is an increase of $100,000 — to
$300,000 total - for the settlement payments, with $40,000 continuing
to be the allocation for judgments.

Mr. Cohran moved that the full board adopt the resolution approving
the 2019 budget and Ms. Perkins seconded the motion. Mr. Brandt
invited public comment and there was none. The motion passed
unanimously with no abstentions.

Resolution of CATS Board of Co ioners

Approving 2019 B

BEIT RESOLVED by the Board of ssioners of Capital Area

sutive Officer shall have to
for.approval. In no event may
or total exp
f Commissioners.

 the CEOQ to settle the claim of

is under the terms of the settlement
t policy adopted by the Board on July 20, 2004
ter might possibly be discussed in executive
ired by‘the Open Meetmﬁ Law, notice is hereby
im is pending in the 19" Judicial District Court and
6,552, Sec. 22: and that Willis Travis, Sr. and Marie
ntiffs and Capital Area Transit System and Michelle

Mr. Brandt moved to enter executive session to discuss the pending
litigation referenced in action items 5 and 6 and Mr. Cohran
seconded the motion. Mr. Brandt invited public comment and there
was none. The motion passed unanimously with no objection.

6. Strategy session regarding the claims of Arthur Davis, Sr., Arthur
Davis, Jr., Artisha Davis, and Carla Davis. (This matter might
possibly be discussed in executive session. As required by the Open




Meeting Law, notice is hereby given that this claim is pending in the
19™ Judicial District Court and is Suit Number 640,054, Sec. 22; and
that Arthur Davis, Sr., Arthur Davis, Jr., Artisha Davis, and Carla
Davis are the plaintiffs and Capital Area Transit System and Eric
Marselis are the defendants.)

Thereafter, the board reconvened in open session.

Mr. Brandt moved that the CEO is authorized to settle the claim of
Willie Travis, Sr. and Marie Travis for th m of fifty-five thousand
and 00/100 {$55,000) dollars under the terms of the settlement and
judgment payment policy adopted b Board on July 20, 2004 as
amended and Ms. Pierre seconde ' t|on Mr. Brandt invited
public comment and there wa
unanimously with no objecti

PUBLIC COMMENTS

not improved since her
ADA regulation and
nges to the public. She
customers have been banned from
d coordination and drivers are rude




2250 Florida Boulevard
Baton Rouge, LA 70802

PHONE:  225.389.8920

EXECUTIVE STAFF

Bill Deville
Chief Executive Officer

Darrell Brown
Chief Administrative Officer

brcats.com

CATS

CAPITAL ARER TRANSIT SYSTEM

Connecting you to what matters.

EXECUTIVE REPORT
January 2019
Bill Deville and Executive Staff

HUMAN RESOURCES: Darrell Brown
e The Human Resources Department participated in a donation effort for St.
Vincent DePaul in December.

OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE: Dwana Williams
e Operations now has 131 active Operators
e See attached Performance Measures

CEO NOTES: Bill Deville

As we conclude 2018 and start 2019, CATS can say that, with the leadership of this
Board of Commissioners, 2018 was a very successful year in continuing the
turnaround of CATS even with some challenges.

e |n addition to key stakeholders like BRAC, BRAF, DOTD, CRPC, etc., our City
Parish, State, and Federal elected officials stepped up to the plate with very
positive support of CATS. Some of this support included:

o Several grant awards facilitating a number of projects and programs

o Joined in support of, or invited CATS to participate in a number of
collaborative programs and projects for the betterment of Baton
Rouge and the region

e CATS has several projects planned for 2019, and a Service Improvement Plan
to begin February 24™:

e CATS is working with Will Scott & Company to do an executive
search for a Chief Operating Officer and hopes to have qualified
candidates by early second quarter 2019.

e CATS first BRT route project is underway with BYD Electric buses
scheduled for delivery of the first electric bus by March. The Plank
Road BRT revenue service is slightly delayed to near the end of
2019 to work in the major joint Transit Oriented Development
project, the Plank/Nicholson BRT Corridor Small Starts project
collaborating with City Parish, Redevelopment Authority, and a
number of key stakeholders throughout Baton Rouge

e Operations and Communications working to on how to best utilize
the new electric buses once they are ready for revenue service,
between their arrival and the beginning of BRT revenue service;
there will also be a press event planned once more details have
been established

e CATS will be planning to break ground on the East (Cortana)
Transit Center in January; there will be a planned press event
once more details are secured



2250 Florida Boulevard
Baton Rouge, LA 70802

PHONE: 225.389.8920

EXECUTIVE STAFF

brecats.com

CHTS

CARITAL ARER TRANSIT SYSTEM

Connecting you to what matters.

e CATS will be implementing its first Microtransit Pilot Project;
Operations and Communications will begin preparing another a
Microtransit pilot service area and marketing plan will be
developed announcing the specifics of the pilot project

e Once the government shutdown concludes, CATS is hopeful to
begin working on the North Baton Rouge Transit Center, adjacent
to the LSU Health facilities on Airline Highway

e CATS has started working on implementing a system wide
Enterprise Technology program for all areas of the agency

e Gallagher was contracted to begin a CATS organization
compensation study this month, and it is expected to last four to
six months.

e Postlethwaite & Netterville CPA firm confirmed they will arrange a team of
accounting practice and finance software auditors to review and confirm
changes made by the Finance staff; this is expected to begin in early January.

PLANNING: Bill Deville
FACILITIES PLANNING: James Baker or Bill Deville
North Baton Rouge Transit Center:

e Management is waiting to hear from LSU/Division of Administration as they
proceed in clearing their regulatory requirements prior to the sale of the LSU
property in North Baton Rouge to CATS.

e A new property survey has been commissioned to establish property
boundaries and to identify physical structures — fencing, DOTD signage, etc. —
adjacent to the property.

e The property survey will aid in identifying and removing any property
encroachments prior to the sale; it will be LSU’s responsibility to provide free
and clear property. The survey will also identify physical structures and
obstructions to be considered in the design of the development.

East Baton Rouge Transit Center — Cortana-Walmart Transit Center:

e Construction bids for the Cortana Transit Center have been received and
vetted by CATS staff and legal counsel.

e Arecommendation to award the contract will be considered by the F&E
Committee and the full board this month.

Downtown Transit Center:

e Management continues its outreach to the Division of Administration along
with Hollywood Casino officials regarding CATS vision and feasibility of a
Downtown Transit Center.

e DOTD appears to be one controlling entity of possible properties in downtown
that could accommodate CATS operations. DOTD officials have identified
specific site that may be suitable to house portions of our operations.

e Access to a site for bus staging site is critical to the Downtown Transit Center.
Management is working to schedule a meeting with casino officials to discuss
their support.



2250 Florida Boulevard
Baton Rouge, LA 70802

PHONE: 225.389.8920

EXECUTIVE STAFF

brcats.com

CATS

CRAPITRL AREA TRANSIT SYSTEM

Connecting you to what matters.

Bus Rapid Transit:
Plank and Florida BRT:

The design and engineering phase is underway for Plank and Florida station
designs.

Consultants have reviewed each Plank and Florida BRT station locations to
identify pedestrian safety issues, right-of-way limitations, utility impediments,
etc.

Engineering surveying, 3D scanning, and photography is compete and right-of-
way mapping and limits of construction data have been obtained.

Plank-Nicholson BRT:

CATS recently participated in a series of stakeholder workshops conducted by
HNTB in conjunction with the City-Parish and the EBR Redevelopment
Authority. The stakeholder meetings included briefings to elected officials,
downtown stakeholders, and a presentation to Plank Road stakeholders and
interested parties. The objective of the briefings was to outline the scope and
intent of the redefinition study, obtain and address stakeholder concerns,
map out proposed funding structure as well as plans for advancing the
project.

CATS management met recently with Baton Rouge Airport officials to discuss
their forthcoming plans regarding its plans to expand an area of the runway in
compliance with federal aviation regulations. This would require that Plank
Road be re-routed; this construction starts in 2019, and is slated to take about
12 to 18 months. Plank Road will not be closed and re-routed during
construction but only after construction is completed. There will be another
meeting in January to discuss potential options for transit service possibilities
for the airport and CATS.

City of Baker:
Park-and-Ride project

The Mayor of Baker is advocating the development of park-and-
ride/transportation center on Plank Road. Per Mayor Darnell Waites’ vision,
this project would not only attract and help mitigate the heavy commuter
traffic currently along Plank, but he also envisions this as an economic catalyst
for further private investments in the Baker/Baton Rouge area.

A meeting is scheduled with CRPC to discuss project funding requirements.

A meeting will be set with CATS and Mayor Waites to outline plans to advance
the initial phase once funding has been secured.

Service Planning: Bill Deville

The Service Improvement Plant is scheduled for an implementation date of
February 24, 2019; this date coincides with the first of three run-cuts outlined
in the labor agreement. Staff is working to ensure this deadline is met and
that our customers are fully educated on the new service before the
implementation occurs.

Finance: Rhonda Williams



2250 Florida Boulevard CI I I S

CAPITAL AREA TRANSIT SYSTEM

Baton Rouge, LA 70802
PHONE: 225.389.8920

Key Performance Indicators (KPIs):

e Grants— CATS has received the initial “Recipient Information Request (RIR)”
for the Triennial. The Grants Manager is working to retrieve the information

: from the respective departments.

EXECUTIVE STAFF e Overtime — Overtime for the first ten months of the year is as follows:

R e— o January —$63,000

February — $83,000

March — $89,000’

April = $71,000

May — $65,000

June — $55,000

July — $50,000

August —5$68,000

September — $78,000

October —$118,000

November—$115,134.94

o December--§95,221.50

e December’s overtime is $35,000 over budget as a result of operators that
have been terminated and the utilization of supervisors to avoid as many
route cancellations as possible. However, overtime has decreased from the
last two months by $23,000 in November and $20,000 in December.

o Medicaid = No update.

e Analyzing farebox revenue — The fare box committee will meet before the end
of January.

O 0 00O 0O 000 0 o0

brcats.com




diyssapiy Ajyiuoy m

Yauo
81-220 8I-AON 8I-W0 8T-ddS 8I-8ny  QI-INf  gI-unr ST-AB  8T-idy 8I-JeN 8T-G94 gT-uef /T-98@
i 1 1 | 1 L 1 ]
£29'€0T 099961
‘ i . i W I i
€20'91¢ 99g'gre 16241z L96'sTz VIV TEC cog'szz LVC'STT 160617 €SS 9TC
YZE'TET
Z19'sve
J o i vt v |

diysiapry Ajyjuop S1v9

I L s A

S1453

000°0S

000°00T

000°0ST

000'00Z

000°05¢

000°00€

diyssapry Ajyyuon




5do3s snq Wa1sAs (0301 3yl o %yl €T 1U3saldal Ydlym sjuiodawi} panpayas 1o painsnaw s aoupwiiofiad awi-uQ :3I0N

MOPUIA “UIIAI-G UIYHA SWIL-UQ % m
YIUoN

81220 8I-AON 8I-100 81-deS 8I-8ny gQI-Inf gT-unf gI-AeN 8I-idy QI-JeN 8T-G94 S§T-Uel /T-23Q

- %00
- %0°S
- %0°0T
- %0°'ST
- %0°0C
r %0°SZ
- %0°0€
- %0°SE
- %0°0%
- %0°'SY
- %005
- %0°SS
- %009
" %0°S9
g #6'S9 %199  50ag ki %0°0L

awil-up sdiil sng %

%0'99 %899 %£°99 0/7 0 04

%b L9 oy %0°69 %R0 ATAC ] ST

%0°SL
%008
%058

awil] uQ sduiy sng jo 98ejuadiad e reonce

S153



pajesadQ sduil sng jo ¢

%0708
%018
%0C8
%0°E8
%0°¥8
%0°58
%098
%0°L8
%088
%068
%0°06
%016
%026
%0°E6
%0'¥6
%0°56
%096
%0°L6
%086
%066
%0°00T

81920 8I-AON

paiesadQ sdiil Sng PINPAYIS 4O % et sdu] sng ps||92ue) mm

yIuoW

81-1P0 81-das gr-8ny  gI-nf  gT-unr gT-AelN  8T-idy  ST-IBIN 8T-Q°4

1

8T-uer

£1-33Q

099

0'ee

£ore

USve

%EB6 AT O6 opes %66 .
%L 66
suonejjaue) dia] sng

%866

/ot DO

7ot BO
e

[ —_

S1H3

%566

009

0°00T

0°0ST

0'00¢

0°0s¢

0’00

0°0s€

0°00%

0'0sv

0°00s

0°0sS

0009

paj|aaue) sdii] sng jo Jaquinn




81-220 8T-AON

8T-120

8T

das

s3uipieog 00000T 4od siuie|dwoDd m

Yiuon
8T-8ny  8T-Inf  gr-unr  gT-AelN  QT-idy  QI-JeN  8T-034

8T-uer  /1-92Q

LTy

sbuipieog 00000} J1od sjuiejdwon

S1dH3

0's

00T

0'sE

0'0¥

oSy

sjulejdwo) jo ajey




871290 8T-AON  8T-190  g1-des

8T-8ny

S3|1IAl 000°00T 424 SIUBPIDY J|qRIUIARI] |

Yiuo
8T-INf  8T-unf  gr-Aely  gT-idy

8T-1BIN

8T-9°4  gr-uer

£T-38d

€1

8T

91

LT

€¢

S9|IINl 000°00T J3d SIUBPIIIY S|(BIUBARIG

S1H3

oy

ajey Wapidy




YIuop
81-290 8I-AON 8T-1°0 8T1-d9s gI-8ny QI-nf  8T-unf gr-AelN gr-udy QT-JelN  8T-god

8T-uer

L1233

£98L'T 60181

£°026'1 _

T°9%1'C

T

8'S65'C _

MAISAS LENHML HHH W 1k

S14H3 saJnjieq |ediueyd3|A 139 SIIINl UBSN

0°00s

0°000T

0'00ST

0'000C

0°005C

0'000°€

0'00S'€

SI|IAl IPIY3A




8T-29Q

8I-AON BT-120 8T

!

1

S||BD PeOY 194 SS|IIN UBIIN W

Yauo

-das  gr-8nvy  8T-Inf  gT-unr gI-Aey gT-udy  QT-JeIN 8T-°g34 gT-UBl /£T-33Q

S'LLE'Y

LOpE’S

L'0L8Y

Pallr Tatallel

8'0L6'S

a4 LT J

8'L29'9 6191'9
9'85Z'L

TTISY

P'IbT'e

9'vZT'6

8'L18°0T

| nacaess |

MIALEAS LSkl 44 HA ALY

S|jed peoy "199g S3|IIA UeaiN S15d

0'000°C

0°000t

0'000°9

0°000'8

0°000°0T

00002t

S3|INl 3PIY3A




¢ 6RETLOT'Y 065°L0T°L | 0 098°60T 098°60T | 0 (4} AINTTVE LAN
075°880'9T LA £68°05T LTY'LE6ST | 0TSBR09T %L TT | 8L6°9LT 9O0*L68°T | £F0° sasuadxy Sagesdp eiog,
LPEECR %0000 | L¥S'ES8 0 ipsess  |wo0o1 | szi1e 0 sZ1'IL (reudey} yorep [eac]
160%T1 Y69z |{(EPETE) PEFLST 160%ZT %0001 | IvE0l ] Ireol S[EI=Y pue s35237]
90L°658 %EIE | SPTELT 19%°L68 90L°698 %ETE | G6E'ET LLO'6Y OLFTL S3TUMIRE SOBR]POSTN
665067 SL'ST | ERFES 951981 s55°08 |woTe | 108% 801 £38°0C sUNIN
6ELH05"E %80T | PEFSTL SOLVLLT | 6E1%0S°E |%6¥T | SPOTL oLl | E10'z6T sa1[ddng 2p sjpuawpy
0001672 %6 €1 COL6EE LETIOET | 000°1rEE  |Mss 691°TL SPZTHI | LIF'E0T Toeodsuesy, pasending
LO66T1] w0 Er-  [(SZTE'SBE) TEEEIOT | LO6'6TI'T w00l | 15t 8078 55176 S30TAIOG
IR0°E9%°1 % [(0SL'E9) 1e8°0ZS'T 1 I8D'ESF' T |%0os | £87'89 9£9°EC £26°1Z1 Aipqery pue Apense)
0SH ZEFS1 %66 |{(T90'9Ts D) ZISBLE°OT | OSP'ESYST [%e0 PSL'E IS6°E8T'T | POLLST'T §ysuag IBuLL] POE J0qE] REIOL
S6ERLE %£'08  [{6£9'300°C) LEIESE'e 1 8ep'prL’e ML |(89TRL1) olenst | tre'Tie s1gauag afupg
Z56'LOLTT 2L T1 | BLSTEFT PLESTTOL | Ts6'L0LTT %L 81 | 220781 o'eaL | £59°5L6 Joqey
sesuadxy Suyesadey
0Z£°330°92 %L E 969956 9TTSP0'LT | 0T6'880°9T |9e0 s |(STTLE) 9T6'I01T | EFOFLIT HNNIATE 40 SHOUNOS TYIOL
0T5'880°9 L€ 969956 9ITEPO°LT | 0T5'880°9T |%e0re- |(B11'29) STEI0T'T | EPOPLTT saNuANY Sunesad() oy,
LES LSV W | £3F'F6E DROTEE'S | 865°LEFY  [|%0D 0 008695 | 00%°695 SunexadQ rapa [0,
ETEC6T £TESHT a s9sES T S0H VYOS - V1A
180°01F 180°0%F 0 WOPRIL] MAN/IUV - VI
S0E6ZT %' |(LetsD) 608°C1T 90£'62Z  |%0°0 il 60161 601761 Suuueld - VL4
000°06 %0°TE | LE8'ST CER'BIT 80006 %00 0 0os'L 008°Z UCHRASIIUPY 100010 - 1 {
ZELBILY % E TPL6ET PEO'RST Y | E6T'RITY [%00O i} T6T°EFE | 161°¢hE SIURUAUEEY JARTIAL] - V1,1
spisqug Juneedey Eaapag
TO0'SLLRT w0~ |(T09'er) O0FTEL'SN | LOO'SLLRT |%0a () €85 PIC'T | £85'P9S°T JELpRL TON [610T,
100°$76°01 %50 £63°08 FSESO0LT | TOOSTE1 |%00 0 LIFOTFT | LIFOTHT anmandy Xe], A1adory
000°05S %L1~ |(899°16) TEERSE poo'ess o0 | ££8°5k £e8'sr P TORTLOSIBIT, TSUEg
000'C0E"1 Y%sZ-  |(08L7ZE) FITLOTT | 000'00S T |%o0  |(0) £ELS0L | ££€7801 XEL [P/
ANUIARY [EA2PF ] WON
G'SLET %89°¢ | PI8'50T 9ELI86'T | TI6'SL8T |worss [(31T°29) EPSTLT | 09%6ET PAIBEIIAD) STV R0,
$08°'CC e 280 | 9LL°001 188'PET L0g'ey v o5 |(Zzsry z91 FFY SMTRATY LWEY 1910
10005 %5951 | SLT6L 917621 10005 %856 |(166°E) 921 Loy Swreduy AL
100°00s %Z 0P | TE6°00T CEGDOL [0g00s %l'8 8£9°c 0L Sy LS9 1% AMURAY SuSTRAPY
100°011L Yot pi- {(158°18) 0SI°8C 100011 |%0'001- {(£91°6) 0 L9I'6 BITBASY USTENRIEL/ VTV
AR R ¢ v%L8e- |(£70°35T) 060%5T SITZIr b i6- [{irpedd 006 £PEPE (19esuaD) sere,] NsuRI], [ewads
100'05LT %07 |(56T'5E) SOLFTLT | T06DSLT Ju0 sl [Eeg'sT) 000°6TL | £ER'spI sare] pred 1oBuasseg
yeBipng pascuddy % — JNGURY B, _ enjoy _ jabpng % _ JuncLy s _ ey _ 1e6png uonausseq

8FAD

I ebed

Qe 0] Jea

yjuopy JuaiLng

BLOT L€ JogWaoa(] papuy pouad au Jog

|len)ay "sa 18Bpng Bunelad o 4o wswsie)g

WAsAg Nsued] eary [eydes




Capital Area Transit System

1/9/2G19 07:36:26 PM

raft

ASSETS
Current Assets:

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Accounts Receivabla
Property Tax Receivable
Due from Governments
Notes Receivable
Interest and Dividends Receivable
Inventory
Prepaid Expenses and Other Assets

Total Current Assets:

Restricted Assets:

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Total Resiricted Assets:
Investments
Net Pension Asset, Long-Terin
Hquipment, Net
Total Assets
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
Current Liabilities

Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses
Accrued Payroll and Tax Liabilities
Accrued Interest (Bus Leasc)
Note Payable
Accrued Compensated Absences
Claims Payable and Related Liabilities
Capital Lease Payable
Deferred Revenue (Grants/Prop Tax)
Other Current Liabilities
Total Current Liabilities
Long-Term Liabilities
Note Payable, Less Current Portion
Accrued Compensated Abcenses, Less Cuirent Portion
Capital Lease Payable, Less Current Portion
Estimated Liabilities
Tetal Long-Term Liabilities
Total Liabilities
Netf Assets:
Investments in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt
Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents
Unrestricted
Total Net Assets:
Total Liabilities And Net Assets

Report name: Two Columns Balance Sheet
Chart template: Balance Sheet-NEW
Inciude account levels 1 to 4

Include accounts with zero balances
Include inactive accounts

Balance Sheet

December 2018

12/31/2018

($2,278,656.59)
$390,229.33
$17,291,859.00
$541,527.75

" $0.00

$0.00
$713,704.97
$103,235.07

$16,761,899.53

$694,618.14

$694,618.14

$0.00
$490,522.00

$20,392,232.01

$38,339,271.68

$803,605.93
$1,036,163.37
($0.27)

$0.00
$142,274.27
$883,055.80
($656,273.46)
$5,232,784 91
$0.00

$7,441,610.55

$0.00
$266,320.40
$3,938,589.76

$1,192,231.01

$5,397,141.17

$12,838,751.72

($14,736,901.37)
($694,618.14)

($10,069,000.45)
($25,500,519.96)

$38,339,271.68




%S- (L16'V0TS) pund
uoileuodsuel] ysue
ney 1 ys! @mm

TT9v9S xelL
[210Al/|310H

%01 £88°0vC$
senuaA’y sunesadQ

LT0C

sanuanay Sunesado Ajyjuon




%¢ €E€8'SYS pund

uoneuodsuel] ysiied %81

008'69€$ saIpisqns

; rd
%S €EE'B0TS Sunesado [e1apadq

Xe] [310A1/]1310H \

%8 memﬁ:ut\
senuaaay Sunesado BTOC

sanuanay SunesadQ Ajyjuop




%9- (Z0¥'TSTS)

s)jauag asul %Y1 6E0°LSES

Ayjiger pue Ayense)

%L 06Y'68TS
uonelodsues)
paseying
%S 690°GETS
saljddng 3 sjeusie

%1 SZI'STS sennn
%9

3
g.mmmﬁﬁm sasuadx3
h.—“ON snoaue|[adsIy

%1 TT66E9TS
s|ejuay pue sasea1”

sasuadx3 SunesadQ Ajyjuo




%E 9€9'€SS

- %Y 80L78S S2AIAIRS

%0T 87Z'T6TS
uoneuodsuel|
paseyding

\

“%IT Y9E'6TTS
. salddng 13 sjeL1e |y

%€ / /
S5'9L0°6Y$ sesuadx3 | 8T0Z % Z80PISsanian
snosug|[adsIAl -~

sosuadx3 Sunesado Ajyruon

Aiger) pue Ayjense)




FPC 00-
Capital

Total by

Grant Type Type

Grant Number

(sianietared. ol bat e (ot Sl el SIS, ¢ SRS Sl i

2,810,071




CAHTS

CRPITAL ARER TRANSIT SYSTEM

Connecting you to what matters.

MEETING OF THE
FINANCE AND EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
CAPITAL AREA TRANSIT SYSTEM AND
PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION COMMISSIONS
JANUARY 10, 2019
Ninth Floor Conference Room
5700 Florida Boulevard

MINUTES

The Finance and Executive Committee met on Thursday, January 10, 2019, at
10:30 a.m. Present at the meeting were members Jim Brandt, Erika Green, Linda
Perkins, and Antoinette Pierre. Also present were Bill Deville, Darrell Brown,
Dwana Williams, and members of CATS staff.

l Call to order and establishment of quorum
Mr. Brandt welcomed those assembled.

Il President’s Announcements
Mr. Brandt let the committee know that Mr. Bellue, Ms. Pierre, and he had
been reappointed by the Metro Council at their meeting on January 9". Mr.
Thomas was replaced with Laurence Lambert; their respective terms are
effective immediately. Mr. Brandt thanked Mr. Thomas for his service to

CATS and Mr. Thomas shared that he has enjoyed his time and hopes the
best for the agency.

M. Safety Moment

Ms. Renee Simpson shared a safety moment that centered on bus operator
safety.

IV. Executive Report and Financials

Mr. Deville noted that there was no update from the Human Resources
Department.



Ms. Williams updated the committee on the performance measures. She
noted that CATS had 203,627 passenger trips in December, There were 1.9
preventable accidents per 100,000 miles. Ms. Williams shared that there
were 385 trips cancelled in December of the approximately 35,000 trips for
the month; she shared this was largely due to vehicle maintenance issues.
The percentage of on-time trips was 66%. There were 41.7 complaints per
100,000 miles in December. Ms. Williams shared that there were 1,305.1
miles between mechanical failures and 4,377.5 miles between road calis.

It was noted that CATS has taken delivery of the eight GiIIig{l buses and they
will be ready for revenue service in the week of January 15" when all
technology and software has been installed and tested.

Mr. Deville noted that CATS had a successful 2018 and shared some of the
highlights with the committee members. He noted that key stakeholders
like BRAC, BRAF, DOTD, CRPC, City, State, and Local elected officials,
were very supportive of the agency. There were several grant awards
facilitating a number of projects and programs, and CATS was invited to
join a number of collaborative programs and projects for the betterment of
Baton Rouge.

Mr. Deville shared that CATS has several projects planned for 2019, as well
as a Service Improvement Plan that is scheduled to begin February 24",
The agency is working with Will Scott & Company to do an executive
search for a COO and hopes to have qualified candidates by early second
quarter 2019. The agency’s first BRT route is underway with the first BYD
electric bus scheduled for delivery in March. Staff is working to determine
how best to utilize the new buses once they are ready for revenue service.
CATS will be planning to break ground on the East Baton Rouge Cortana
Transit Center in January.

CATS plans to implement its first Microtransit Pilot Project. Operations and
Communications will begin preparing a marketing plan that will announce
the specifics of the project once the study is complete.

The agency has undertaken a compensation study that is expected to be
complete in four to six months.

CATS will temporarily suspend charter service until June 2019 in an effort
to focus on fixed-route service.

In Facilities Planning, Mr. Deville let the board know the construction bids
for the Cortana Transit Center have been received and a recommendation
to award the contract will be presented as an action item.




VI.

Ms. Rhonda Williams shared that CATS had $172,543 in self-generated
revenue for December. There was $1,564,583 in non-federal revenue and
$369,800 in federal revenue for a total of $2,106,926 in operating revenue
for December. Year to date the agency has collected $27,045,216 in total
operating revenue.

The operating expenses for December were $1,897,066. Year to date the
agency has spent $25,937,627 in operating expenses.

Ms. Williams reported on the Key Performance Indicators for December and
noted that in grants, CATS has received the initial “Recipient Information
Request” for the upcoming Triennial Review.

The agency spent $95,221 in overtime in December that is primarily related
to operator terminations, which have led to supervisors filling trips where
possible.

It was noted there was no update on the Medicaid process.

Ms. Williams shared that the farebox committee plans to reconvene in
January to discuss the recommendations made by the committee.

Mr. Brandt let the committee know that he had asked staff to consider
waiving fares when the Service Improvement Plan (SIP) is implemented.
Ms. McNaylor shared that the average weekly revenue for 2018 was
$26,960, and the revenue for the same week in 2018 was $31,188. After
discussion by the committee members, each was supportive of waiving
fares and it was decided that the full board would be asked to consider
waiving fares for the week of February 24 through March 2, 2019.

Recommend award of construction contract for Cortana Transit Center
construction project

Mr. Brown notified the committee that CATS received two bids in response
to the construction Invitation to Bid (ITB). He noted the low bid appeared to
be flawed and there is a hearing regarding the issue scheduled for Friday,
January 11™.

Mr. Abadie noted that he and Mr. Brown wanted to inform the committee of
the status of the bid. He shared that it is their hope that the agency will be
in a position to award the bid to the remaining bidder at the January
meeting and to not delay the project.

Recommend approval to extend adjuster claims services contract with
Brown Claims Management Group, LLC




VIL.

Mr. Brown noted that the contract with Brown Claims Management, LLC is
set to expire at the end of February and CATS is satisfied with the work of
the firm. He noted that the contract will remain the same but there will be a
2.23% increase in the cost according to the Consumer Price Index (CPI).

Mr. Abadie shared that Brown Claims has been a good partner with CATS
for many years and that as it relates to the services he sees, Brown Claims
has provided excellent service to CATS.

Ms. Pierre moved that the full board approve a one-year renewal with
Brown Claims Management Group, LLC for adjuster claims services and
Ms. Perkins seconded the motion. Mr. Brandt invited public comment and
there was none. The motion passed unanimously with no abstentions.

Recommend approval of 2019 CATS Strategic Plan

Ms. McNaylor shared that the revisions to the 2019 Strategic Plan were
centered on goals and action items. The goals and action items completed
in 2018 were replaced with the goals and action items listed in the new
plan. She noted there were no changes to the priorities, core vaiues, or
mission statement.

Mr. Brandt shared that the plan had been reviewed by the Planning
Committee and was unanimously recommended to the F&E Committee for
recommendation of approval.

Mr. Brandt moved that the full board adopt the 2019 CATS Strategic Plan
with the proposed revisions and Ms. Perkins seconded the motion. Mr.
Brandt invited public comment and there was none. The motion carried
unanimously with no abstentions.

There being no further business, the meeting adjourned.




puewag ¥ uonduasgns %= |BOD e Hdd =

Jagquialaq Jaquianon Jagol1a( Jaquwaadas  1sndny >_:_. aung J1aquiadaq Jaquianon JeqolpQ Jaqwaldas  1sndny Anr aunr Aep
gc pr— p— S A — P— - S— P—
%01
o _ %SL %09
%8S ey | G
%6V ooy %TY e %SP % %08
%00T vLT
%021 8T'¢
ANVINIA "'SA NOILdIY¥DSans Aanonpoud (Hdd) 1noH 134 sia8uassed
[BOD s 4| O M
laguwalag Jaguwanop 134010 Jaquaidag snany Aing aunf
%8°08
%6°€8
| %968 %888
%9176 %0°86

3JUBWIOAd W] UQ

%0°SL

%008

%0°58

%006

%056

%0°00T



moys on SuonE[[EouUR) JaquinN . sdil] PINPayds =
et LTT mwm . B 69T £€C T4 66¢ 7
TL9 79 079 89 029 0s9 759 LOb
LITL 687L S6T8 T€ZL 8116 9908 09SL B vLSS
Jaquiazag J3quWianoN [gono 1aquiandas 1sngny Apnr aunf Aeiny
44 - L1z - 0¥z - 65T - b4 - 55T - 662 - vy
LoV
129 bp9 029 859 029 0s9 759
B e l — - . bLss
L1z 1€2L
68vL 09S£
S618 9908

8T16

1111 L4VHO

moys oN

SUOIIB[[2IURY ISCWINN &

sdu] pajnpayds «

0001

000z

000€

000%

000S

0009

0ooL

0008

0006

0000T



J3Quwadag JBqUIBAON  19G032Q  Jagquwaldss Ajnr

1sndny

- sjuiejdwo) #

SHeUD@BYM (BI0] SI3pIY |eloL |

Jagquwadaqg Jaguianop 13403120 1agwidas 1snany

aunf

1sn8ny Ajng

s||eD peoy #

Alnr aunf Aey

vLT

LIvL 0ZEL

S6L

8618
[ATAS)

Sg£9

L91S

8069

6.L6L

Aen

0t
T
T

91

000T
0007
0oog
000%
0005
0009
000Z
0008
0006

0000T



2250 Florida Boulevard
Baton Rouge, LA 70802

PHONE:  225.389.8920

CONTACT

Renee Simpson
Risk and Safety Manager
rsimpson@breats.com

hreats.com

CATS

CAPITAL AREA TRANSIT SYSTEM

Connecting you to what matters.

January 4, 2018

MEMORANDUM

To: William “Bill” Deville, CATS CEO
Darrell Brown, CATS CAO
Lisa Sanchez, CATS Procurement Manager

From: Renee Simpson, CATS Risk and Safety Manager (and
Project Manager)

Subject: Brown Claims Management Group, LLC (adjuster claims

services)

Contract Performance / Renewal and Extension

One (1) Year Renewal & Extension from Mar. 1, 2019 thru
Feb 28, 2020 (based on CATS Original RFP Solicitation #2010-
Adjust-004)

Purpose:
The purpose of this summary is to document the satisfactory Contract

Performance by Brown Claims over the past year and to ensure the
appropriate procurement procedures are taken in an effort to recommend a
renewal and extension of this contract.

Background and Procurement Contract Awards:

Aug 2010 thru Aug 2015 - Original Contract: The Adjuster Claims Services
contract was awarded to Brown Claims Services, Inc. through an RFP
competitive process. CATS received five (5) proposals, and through an
evaluation process, Brown Claims Management Group, LLC was selected as
the contractor who best met CATS needs, price and otherwise. The original
contract was effective for an initial term of three (3) years w/two (2) one-year
renewal options available (or a total of 5 years) through August 2015.

Aug 2015 to Aug 2016 - Contract Renewal & Extension: CATS assigned
Project Manager determined that it was in the best interest of CATS to renew
and extend the Brown Claims Services, Inc. contract for an additional one year
thru August 2016. CATS allowed Brown Claims, in accordance with the original
RFP, to apply the Consumer Price Index (CPI), which resulted in a slight price
increase. The new prices were compared to the prices received in 2010 from
the four (4) other proposals, and Brown Claims Management Group, LLC were
still significantly lower. Although we advertised the original RFP to get
competitive pricing, Louisiana Public Bid Law does not require service
contracts to be competitively solicited. Federal procurement laws are not
applicable because we do not use any federal money in this type of project.
Therefore, CATS issued a contract renewal and extended the contract period
through August 2016. (Refer to Table 1 below for Brown Claims price changes
from 2010 thru 2018).




2250 Florida Boulevard
Baton Rouge, LA 70802

PHONE: 225.389.8920

breats.com

CHTS

CAPITAL RRER TRANSIT SYSTEM

Connecting you fo what matters.

Aug 2016 to Aug 2017 - Contract Renewal & Extension: CATS assigned
Project Manager once again determined that it was in the best interest of CATS
to renew and extend the Brown Claims contract for another year through
August 2017. Again the CPI was applied, which resulted in a slight increase
again. The new prices were compared to the prices received in 2010 from the
four (4) other proposals and Brown Claims’ prices were once again significantly
lower. CATS issued a contract renewal and extended the contract period
through August 2017. (Refer to Table 1 below for Brown Claims price changes
from 2010 thru 2018).

Aug 2017 to Feb 2018 - Contract Renewal & Extension: The current CATS
assigned Project Manager determined that it was in the best interest of CATS
to renew and extend the contract for a six (6) month duration instead of one
year. The six (6) month period was to allow the Project Manager to fully
evaluate the performance of the contractor and enable him to make a
determination if it was in the best interest of CATS to issue a new RFP for
these services. Brown Claims was in agreement with this decision and was
willing to renew at the same prices from the prior year and extend the contract
through Feb 2018. (Refer to Table 1 below for Brown Claims price changes
from 2010 thru 2018).

Feb 2018 to Feb 2019 - Contract Renewal & Extension: The current CATS
assigned Project Manager and CAO determined that it was in the best interest
of CATS to renew and extend the contract for a duration of one (1) year
through February 2019. With this renewal, CATS allowed Brown Claims, in
accordance with the original RFP, to apply the Consumer Price Index (CPl),
which resulted in a slight price increase (1.35%) to the Adjuster Hourly Rate,
the Clerical Hourly Rate and the File Origination Fee; all of the other services
pricing remained the same in accordance with the original 2010 RFP pricing.
The new prices were compared to the prices received in 2010 from the four (4)
other proposals and Brown Claims Management Group, LLC was found to be
lower than the second lowest proposer in the original 2010 RFP. The
performance of the contractor was evaluated as satisfactory and the best
interest of CATS to continue. Brown Claims Services was in agreement with
this decision and extended the contract through Feb 2019. Brown Claims
Services, Inc. also legally changed their name to Brown Claims Management
Group, LLC. (Refer to Table 1 below for Brown Claims price changes from
2010 thru 2019 renewal).

Feb 2019 to Feb 2020 — Contract Renewal & Extension: The current CATS
assigned Project Manager has determined that it is in the best interest of CATS
to renew and extend the contract for a duration of one (1) year through
February 2020. With this renewal, CATS has allowed Brown Claims, in
accordance with the original RFP, to apply the Consumer Price Index (CPI),
which will result in a slight price increase (2.23%) to the Adjuster Hourly Rate,
the Clerical Hourly Rate and the File Origination Fee; all other services pricing
will remain the same in accordance with the 2010 RFP pricing. The proposed




2250 Florida Boulevard CI I I S

Baton Rﬂuge LA 70802 CAPITRL AREA TRANSIT SYSTEM

PHONE: 2253698520

renewal prices were again compared to the prices received in 2010 from the
four (4) other proposals and Brown Claims Management Group, LLC’s hourly
Adjuster Rate was found to be 19.77% lower than the second lowest proposer
in the original 2010 RFP. The performance of the contractor has been
evaluated as satisfactory and in the best interest of CATS to continue. (Refer
to Table 1 below for Brown Claims price changes from 2010 thru 2019
renewal).

Contract Renewal and Extension Recommendations:

It has been determined to be in the best interest of CATS to renew and extend
the Brown Claims Management Group, LLC, contract for a period of one (1)
year from March 1, 2019 thru February 28, 2020.

Table 1 - Contract Pricing from 2010 to Current

Adjuster
Claims | Origina | 2015 2016 | 2017- 2018- 2019-
Services Unit | to to 2018 2019 2020
Descriptio | Cost | 2010 to | 2016 2017 | Pricin Renewa
n 2015 Pricin | Pricin g |
Pricing g g Pricing
Adjuster Per | $46.00 $ $50.34 | $50.34 | $51.0 | $52.15
Rate Hour 49.92 2
(hourly)
Clerical Per | $23.00 $ $25.17 | $25.17 | $25.5 | $26.08
Rate Hour 24.96 1
(hourly)
Mileage Per IRS IRS IRS IRS IRS | IRS rate
Mile rate rate rate rate rate
File Per | $40.00 $ $43.77 | $43.77 | $47.7 | $48.76
Origination | File 43.41 8
Fee
Police Per Actual | Actual | Actual | Actual | Actual | Actual
Reports RE{JOF Cost Cost Cost Cost | Cost Cost
Photos Per | § 1.00 | $ 1.00 | $1.00 | $1.00 | $1.00 $1.00
Photo
Copies Per | $025|% 025 $0.25 | $0.25 | $0.25 | $0.25
Page
Faxes Per | $ 025 [$ 025| $0.25 | $0.25 | $0.25 | $0.25
Page
Digital Actual | Actual | Actual | Actual | Actual | Actual | Actual

hreats.com




2250 Florida Boulevard CI I I S

Baton Rouge, LA 70802 CAPITAL AREA TRANSIT SYSTEM
PHONE: 225.389.8920
Equip Cost Cost Cost Cost Cost Cost Cost
(tapes, CD,
other)
Postage Actual | Actual | Actual | Actual | Actual | Actual | Actual
i INTACT ‘ Cost Cost Cost Cost Cost Cost
GOHAL | Long Per | $ 100 | $ 1.00 | $1.00 | $1.00 | $1.00 $1.00
S N L Distance Call
Telephone

brcats.com




CATS

CRAPITAL RREA TRENSIT SYSTEM

Connecting you to what matters.

January 7, 2019
MEMORANDUM

To: William “Bill” Deville, CEO
Darrell Brown, CAO

From: Lisa M Sanchez, CATS Procurement Manager
James Baker, Capital Improvements Director and Project Manager

Subject: CATS Procurement Process and Bid Review Summary
Recommendation for an Award of Contract
ITB Solicitation #2018-CortanaTransitCtr-020

Purpose:
The purpose of this Procurement Summary is to document the procurement process and to recommend

an award of a contract for the referenced Construction of the Cortana Transit Center contract.

Background:
The purpose of the ITB is to secure a contract for a firm to handle the construction of the Cortana Transit

Center — Civil Work Improvements (Public Works/Construction) as described in the referenced ITB.

Procurement Process:

The solicitation was advertised in The Advocate (official journal) and in the Weekly Press (DBE
Publication) on November 29, December 5 and December 10, 2018. The ITB notification was also
emailed directly to 41 contractors, including 13 small businesses and DBE firms. A Pre-bid conference
and site visit was also held for the attending vendors on December 4" at 11:00am. During the open
inquiry period, CATS received 1 question, which was answered via an Addendum to the ITB on
December 14, 2018. On December 27, 2018 CATS Procurement Department received two (2) bids in
response to the ITB from the following firms: (1) Kelly Construction Group (total bid amount:
$465,181), and (2) The Luster Group (total bid amount: $346,042.25).

Bids Received and Reviewed:

CATS Procurement Department staff conducted a compliance review of the two (2) bids received and
found one (1) of them to meet the requirements of the ITB. This one (1) bid was deemed to be
responsive. One (1) bid was found to be non-responsive, as the bidder did not include the signed
Signatory Page (Page 1 of the ITB) with the bid, as was required in the ITB.

Pending Issues:

While the low bidder acknowledges a flawed bid, he alleges that the next low bid is flawed as well.
Official notice of the flawed low bid has been issued to the apparent low bidder as staff prepares to
recommend award to the next low bidder. The merits of the bidder’s allegations are being reviewed by

legal counsel.

Contract Award Recommendation:

CATS Procurement and the Project Manager recommend awarding this contract to the only responsive
and responsible bidder, Kelly Construction Group, for $465,181, which is within the CATS current
budget amount for this project.

Note: If award is approved, CATS Procurement will issue the Purchase Order (contract) to Kelly Construction Group. The contractor will
prepare the necessary materials and will plan to begin work on or about January 22 and end on or about May 30 2019. Dates also depend on
time taken by Contractor to obtain an acceptable Performance Bond and a Certificate of Recordation from the EBR Clerk of Court, per ITB.



DECEMBER

2018 2017
# |ROUTES RIDERSHIP | REVENUE | RIDERSHIP | REVENUE
8 Gus Young/BRCC 2,799 § 1,491.96 14,064| $ 8,604.80
10 |Scenic Hwy/Southern University 6,119| $ 3,473.77 5557 & 3,253.17
11 Norhside Circulator 4025| $ 2,865.06 5,046| § 3,5683.97
12 |Govermment/defferson 8,408 $ 3,487.42 9,878 § 3,658.10
14 Thomas Delpit 4166[ § 2,397.08 3,366[ § 2,099.98
186 |Capitol Park Trolley 2| $ - 2| § -
17 Perkins Rd/Mall of LA 10,491} $ 5,498.11 12,311] 6,126.45
18 LSU/Cortana Mall 7403 § 3,844.51 5,885 § 3,386.11
20 North Acadian 8,697 § 5,360.07 11,658 $ 7,471.39
21 Fairfield/Cortana Mall 5652 § 3,037.686 3 8 0.35
22 |Winbourne 7,392] & 4,188.88 ol $ -
23 |Foster Drive 5725| § 3,486.56 ol $ -
41 [Plank Road 18,837| § 10,793.16 19,458] $ 10,629.24
44  |Florida Blvd 30,583 § 14,231.58 32,202| § 15,134.88
46 |Gardere/OLOL/L'auberge 4,833 $ 3,888.17 221 § 575
47 Highland Road 21,568 $ 10,346.48 48,5311 § 27,148.14
50 |Glen Oaks/Greendale 27211 § 1,808.53 0| § -
52  |Baker Circulator 1,244| $ 1,020.33 1,369| § 1,115.36
54  |Airline HwyNorth/SUBR 11,635] § 7,404.74 0| § -
‘55 East Florida/BREC 3215 $ 2,260.18 0| § -
56 Mali to Mall via Drusilla 5,765 $ 2,641.21 281 § 22.30
57 |Sherwood Forest 12,069] $ 8,341.36 12,340] § 8,620.55
58 Coursey/O'Neal 4,985) $ 2,988.27 7,601 § 4,430.30
59 East Florida/O'Neal 4557 $ 2,649.55 590| § 284.31
60 Medical Circulator 768| $ 439.19 565 § 317.58
70 |Baker/Southern Univ/ CATS Terminal 3.812] § 2,235.39 0| § -
72 Flarida Limited 5,260] $ 2,105.70 5,325 § 1,605.79
103 |Alrport Express 16| $ 75.69 41 § 38.64
80 |sU 870 $ - 628| § -
Terminal Fare Box Probed 8-18
Genfare Trip Adjustments
TOTAL PASSENGERS 203627| $ 112,370.82 196,660 $107,627.18




TRIPS BY ROUTES DECEMBER 2018

Rotite
Route Name Number | RIDERSHIP REVENUE MILEAGE TIME
Gus Young/BRCC 8 2,799 $1,491.96 2,451 279.40
Scenic Hwy/Southern 10 6,119 $3,473.77 10,082 688.01
Northside Circulator 11 4,025 $2.865.06 9,347 738.47
Government/Jefferson 12 8,408 $3,487.42 3,192 996.47
Thomas Delpit 14 4,166 $2,397.08 3,500 310.00
Capitol Park Trolley 16 2 $0.00 17 89.35
Perkins Rd/Mall of LA 17 10,491 $5,498.11 13,152 1,025.56
LSU/Cortana Mall 18 7,403 $3,844.51 4,333 903.33
North Acadian 20 8,697 $5,360.07 10,959 894.70
Fairfield/Cortana Mall 21 5,652 $3,037.86 3,712 589.62
Winbourne 22 7,392 $4,188.88 5,017 835.36
Foster Drive 23 5,725 $3,486.56 10,096 888.93
Plank Road 41 18,837 $10,793.16 13,311 1,209.05
Florida Blvd 44 30,593 $14,231.58 7,329 1,487.53
Gardere/OLOL 46 4.833 $3,898.17 9,146 714.31
Highland Road 47 21,568 $10,346.48 18,521 1,762.92
Glen Oaks/Greendals 50 2,721 $1,808.53 2,362 221.47
Baker Circulator 52 1,244 $1,020.33 2,691 733.36
Airline HwyNorth/SUBR 54 11,535 $7,404.73 14,098 1,089.23
East Florida/BREC 55 3,215 $2,260.19 3,915 281.66
Mall to Mall via Drusilia 56 5,765 $2.641.21 7,265 711.47
Sherwood Forest 57 12,069 $8,341.36 9,897 1,046.80
Coursey/O’'Neal 58 4,985 $2,988.27 10,360 755.86
East Florida/O'Neal 59 4,557 $2,649.55 6,832 553.08
Medical Circulator 60 768 $439.19 3,153 285.50
Baker/Southern Univ/ CATS Terminal 70 3,812 $2,235.39 9,746 594.43
Florida Limited 72 5,260 $2,105.70 9,826 412.90
Airport Express 103 116 $75.69 4,766 401.64
Southern University 80 870 $0.00 1,042 94.72
Terminal Fare Box Probed 7/9/18
ReRoutes
ReRoutes
ReRoutes
ReRoutes
LSU TDE Route 96 & 97
Total 203,627 $112,370.81 210,118 20,595.13




%00°001
%00°0
%¥0'0
%L
%LE L

%ET0
%0e'L
%851
%v0'¥
%ll'L
%BL0
%P9e
%¥e0
%90
%598
%BSL
%0001
%B1'9
%L
%GL L
%HBE'L
%9LT
%REVE
%95€
%000
%2
%S9
%l L
%807
%6E" L
%ELQ
%EL'9E
ﬂw\u

wiog 89|

Bunbsyuey MW
SEWISUYD Aeq s,Ueslap Aeq JogeT Aeq Aeg AEpld pooDy Se1S) IpJey SIEAA MAN
aouapuadapuy| [BUOWB
£9€ [ 62 LE 0€ Le LE 0e LE 0g LE 9z LE shep 1oL
i 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 L skeq fouabiaiug
ES S v 2 9 v 9 ? ¥ G ¥ ¥ S sAepung jo JaquinN
L5 E} 14 4 S 14 ¥ S S S 9 S S shepimes Jo Jaquiny
0sZ 0z (%4 54 6l €2 (¥4 4 44 0z 1z 6l 0z skepyaap Jo J2quinN
G a8 AON 120 dag Bny nr unf Repy ady ey GEF] uer
6E0'1 810°L £90'L 0L’ 90’ 990"} 820'L 0£0'L 250'L G50'L 280°L 0¥0'L €8 Reqiad sepid 0 ¥ 3
292'LLE ¥55'0€E 528'0¢ ovo'se L9E°LE PEOEE 188° L€ Z68°0€ 69L'2€ GS9'LE S80'EE oLL'6Z 050°22 YIuow
Jad sapiy pajgesig @ Auepi3
BYE'90L'Y orb'veT S€8'29¢ 6Z6'EEY 8E6'E0V 190'Zve 026'6£2 0e6'Lve 818452 894'6GE GLZ'G8S SP0'SYE LIE'v6T SdidL G3INNIINN TVL0oL
99 99 waunsnlpy asejusg
8bLL oLl 591 661 L9l SiT Sl st LLL Zek LEL ¥9 a8 ssaidx3 podily
vee'Lo 09¢'S 6E6°S 902'9 896'y L¥'S 68C'G 00z's 8EL'9 G.6'S ¥80'9 2589'G 1EG'S Pajir epUol4
OLL'gs Zl8E 845G 91€'9 £€00'9 1195 £82'% CLLE L66'E B0EY ¥00'G 99E'y 0 euIs |
SLVO /AN wagnoguaxed
¥S¥'6 89L 108 9EL prAl 108 106 S64 €48 L8 SLL 1v8 €89 d01B|N3UEY) [RIIPSIN
611’6y 186'Y 0987 LyL'S SOL'y Sie'y 0E9'v 962"y ova'y £51'Y GGy 569’ 15 [BaN.O/epuo| Jse3
Zel've S86'F 66’y 170’9 €L8'F ovl'y £z8'y 106'% G10'S 60Z'S 495G 8E'S 06L'g [eaN,C/AesIn0y
+08'a9L 69021 £8F'ZL S58'vL €05'EL 29L°EL 18E'v1 809’71 GESGL £80'F1 #05'¥L el L1162} 158104 poomiayg
266'LY §94's SE6'Y gis'y er'y 200’y 816'E 6v0'Y L0’y 6vE'y 226'e gl B|IISNIQ BIA [|BN O) [[BIN
82’2 sie'e ZIo'e LZE'E £64'2 1962 604’ 128'C 60L'E 126'2 26L°2 8197 0 03yd/epuold jseg
SIE'BO0L SES'LL ¥ZLLL ZEL'LL 920’01 8ce'oL L€6'8 96€'8 265’6 882'6 <L9'6 162’8 0 HENS/YHONAMH BUlly
vzl vhe'L zEL'L FA 9zt Lrl'L 20z’ LEL'L 92T’ 9LL'L S02' 1 182') 2o0'L Jojenand Jaxeg
L1681 12L'z LG1'g 2002 205°L CLL'L €85°1 €I5'L 0L’} vee'l 1821 662" 0 B[ePUSAIG[SHRQ UBID
6¥0'65€E 895'LZ elr've 9£8'62 299'L2 65492 9.0'.2 Li5'Le 691’62 2EV'6E L¥6'0E 0.8'0€ ovt'ey PEOY PUBIUBIH|
S0t'G9 ££8'y 804G 88.'9 125'9 065'9 t18'9 98F'S 2eT'9 LLE ¥6E'9 8L ¥9 abiagne \NOT10/BI1epIED
869°0L¥ £65'0¢ LG6LE 905'8¢€ 98G'pE LGE'VE CI6'SE LLL'vE S80'9¢ £e6'ee 0€S5'GE ¥0L'€E v6L'LE PAg epuo4
AT L£8'8L Z6E'0C BLG'ZC Z6¥'0T LPE'LE 66v'12 9'e 89¢9'LE ove'Le £69°CC gL0'ce 90£'02 PEOY juBld
866'GY GeL's ¥BL'y A 6EL'Y L68E Z9L°E BEE'Y GLL°€ L6P'E £8E'Y 601’ 0 3AUQ 181504
S¥0'eL 26872 260°2 LeL 229's 869'S 650'9 gse'e 169'9 655'9 16¥'L £96'G 0 auINoquUIpA
8€8'35 259'G 62L'G 040'9 96y 6LL'S L80's 861'G ges's 6ETH +09'¥ L9y e e BUBHOD/pISIIE
0LZ'elt 1698 £26'8 SO0k 9F¥L's 8ET'H 861'6 LPB'L 2626 8%0'6 950'6 L1286 Qor'eh UBIPEDY YHLON
¥ov'L8 €0r'Z Glg'L 809'8 929’4 Lov'L 8.6'L €62, 18r'L £89'0 620'L 945’9 Lvo'g lleyy euepoD/NST
FIE'9YL L6 0L 0LL'LL 18EEL 198'LL Z18'LL 00524 92ZLCL E€VSTL [ AN 658'Z1 90zt 2ZLEL Y140 IBWN/PY subpsd
43 Z S 6l 8¢ b 0 0 8 9 0 0 0 Aajjoa . yied onded|
viL'6Y 9ol'y 219'v ¥8L's ZoL'y 299'v 288’y 962'¥ LG8'E SBE'E 605'E +$6G'E S6E'E ndjaQ sewoy |
£Z9'30} 80r'g 994°2 86%'8 08¥'L 841, 982’8 vee'e YBE'6 68501 6¥E'L1 26401 65001 UOSISH3MAUSIILLIBACD
Yre'zs SZ0'v LIE'Y 66Z'Y oFb'y LIEY 686'¢ 166'S L'y 0¥y €65'Y ¥99'% LG0'G 1018|2410 SPISYLON
20e'ss 6119 259'L £56'8 8052 9ze'L z199 605’9 0€8'9 8IE'L 8ce's 0£8'9 L1E'9 LIBYINOG/AMH JILa0g
LLL'LS 66L'C €9€'E 9.8'¢ LBE'Y 182’ 918'¢ Z18'e GG9'E EEE'Y £29'v 212'G 1Ze'el 2oug/Buno) sng
966'62 0.8 §.9'€ 840’6 9ge'y SELT 68¢ EL6 8% VA AN vog'e £68°L ns
€8E'e8t’L 618°0€ CL8'LSE Lie'esl 2.5'6G8L 9LL'YTT €G6'E2 99%'0¢ SSLYE 128'1vh 1S6'ESE v56'S2L 180'26 NSTAIsuel | 3siy
|ejol q a q N 12qo320 laquajydag 3snBny Anp aunp Aepy jady youey | Asenagag faenuep SdidL ¥IDONIASSYd
(Ayanoy diysiapiy |1e sepnjdul) 810Z 403 LA 2IN0Y




‘ ' d
: alge|ieae
S49qUWSW 93d ‘Jlape| pleme | sinyisu| 013 |emaual I
8y} Aq pejosies se pajmisu] 013 Bulpusiwiliods) 0} UohEpUSWIWOo2al 03D 0} JoBijuoD JOBHUOD m>w>._=w
03D S1VD 0} Jens| pJeme Jo} UONEPUSLILIODSI au} 0y 139y 021898 panoidde 183k 3uQ uonoRISHE
oy} peiedsud jusweindold gL/cL/y peroidde pieog 101502 |BJ0} B JE Jeak pieog anysuy| S0INIOS OEJSlieS
S1VO — 8102 ‘9l |udy uo pleog S1vD Aq panoiddy e 0wy SAaAINS pieog 8L/9L/Y 8L/0E/ 81L/L/S 0z1'998 213 Jnsuen Jawolsny
‘pajoalal
sny) ‘aaisuodsal-uou paswasp pig MO| Uim ‘panisdal
alom spiq (z) omL "gL//g/z) :e¥eq enq/Buiusdp pig BL/SL/L dnoig Jsan
‘19pplq 8|gisuodsal @ sAIsuodsal }1Samo| 0} pieme 18)u8)) JISUBI| BUBLIOD anoidde 6102 L81'59v$ uonoNsSuU0y jisuel] BUBHOD
0] UONEpUBWWOIal SSNISIP M 394 — 6L/0L/L 4O UoRONIISUOY 10} g1 0 pJeog 6L0Z ‘Aey | Jspenp L | 1sop xouddy Aliay gl uoloniisuod
2]
S92INBS
IPNY |eusa)x3
uoisuad
‘suonjdo |[emaual Jeak-auo QL/LE/ZL 2 S1VD
Z Uim ‘0z0z ybnosyy gLozZ ul Bulpus sies\ Jepusjed 1o4 Buipua yoeNU0D Bunsixa SLIEL/LL sieak ¢ oeiues
"81L/0€/0L Uo pauado 44y ‘piEog [N} 0} aAOW 0} panoidde ue aoe|dal 0] 530IAIBS panoiddy 105000°87LS | SIAINBN B | ssomes sadIAieg
89)lwwo) 394 — 8L/8/LL parcidde pieog - QL/EL/LL HPNY [Busixd 10} 44¥ pleog LZ20g 29 610¢ uer 180D xouddy | ayemyjaisod d4y Hnpny
Jaf paiolos Jou DY 'suoneoyiads [BaluLos) # Hd dinb3 pajejay
ay) Bunsaw ) Jeppiq aaisuodsal 1samo] syy BulujuLiep Ul Juswdinbg pajejey e B SapuBLLY Usued |
SPIq UORONASUOD 8L} UM SO ISISSE OS|E (M JUBYINSLIOD |  PUE SORIUSWY HSUBI | 0} agl ubisaq SePlAIRG
ublsag 'oj@ ‘sedeospue ‘sysoiy ‘sielleys epnjoul |IM | seoines ubisaq Joj DAY ag.l ag.lL agl 1500 xouddy agl LT ubisag 39y
‘gL/62/8 @1eQ BulusdQ |esodold "aisgem L4 Hd "pAlg
S1v¥D uo psjsod ‘Is|| JOPUDA O] JUSS UOIEJLIOU pue eld 2 Py yueld
pesiUaApe sl D4y MeN — glL/z/g Buiobuo |jus suonenjeas — SaN|ioe} JISUBs) Mau (ow gy) (ow gL) suonels 1yg
81/0L/0L "GrS WOl 65’16 ZZES 40 JUNOWE BU Ul 180 [BUY | BPNIDUI O} "PAIg Bl 9 Py 8L/EL/LL agal asL ssaIneg S82IAIOS
pan3oal S1vD — 81/§Z/0L "PIeOg |} 0} sA0W 0} panoidde | sjuejd UC SUOCHEIS | Mg 0} panoiddy ®reg :8leQ 000'EZES$ om ubisag -
S3JIWWOY IB4 — 81L/8/LL pancidde pieog - gLiglL/LL | Sedineg ubisaq 10y DY pieog psjewnsy | pejewns3 | 1sop xouddy | ‘dnoto grs Jov ubiseqg 3vy
02/62/2 Ny} [emeus wsmmnww_ﬁwm\,

91/LL/8 '10BNUOD JO [EMBUSI Bunteas(swieo duion fo _imm. iBL/EElz 51 91ep pug
panoidde pleog S1vVD — 9L/0£/8 "Pezieul [emaual | Suaxiom pue Auiger] 1984 B IaEr] dwog 1ayJopn
J0RIJUOD — 91/B/6 "[eMBURI YUOW 9 B 8 [ JOBNUCD SIU} | ‘SUogeBiseAu] Seoinies 0z/62/e Shftcic B0, ut % JRISIIDN 2 Agery
“1oBeue 10910id Jad — L1/1Z/L "pancidde 394 — £1/0L/8 wieyg Jojsnipy’ Jof ybnouuy ‘61L/82/Z ! ot $1049) 199]4 sng
- panouddy pieog - LL/GL/R 'pencidde T84 — 8LISLIZ | joRA4UOD Jeaf g jeuiblio) [emauay alep pua e juswabeuep swie|)
‘pasctdde pieog — 81/02/z 19k aUO o} panss| JOBINUOD | 6L/3Z/Z — 8L/L/S Jo pousd anoiddy waung BL/L/E palepdn suwie|d a4y %

MBN — SLILIE "02/6Z/Z NIu) |emaual 1A | Bupieas — 6L/0L/L | [emeusl panoiddy pieog 0} pJeog 0Z/62/Z ‘[emauay 0} Jajoy umolig a0iAIg iesnipy
Y
SJUBWIWIO? [ SOION pepiaoid _um..,o.an( ajeq ajeq iy awepn adAL uonduasaqg
Jonpold /SadiAlag pleog pug uelg lopusp juon ERITVETS

SYjuow ¢ 03 | UIY}IM uoljoy pieog Bulpuad sjosloid = enjg

J_ mou |eaciddy pieog spaau / Wa)| UOIIOY = MOJIDA

| L0z ‘sl Asenuer

pieog S1VD 10} BuisI Jusiainooid S1VD




*10JOBAUOD S92IAIBS JIsueieled S| vD se uonepodsuel | BB (czoz NIy sjemaual
AN O} JOBIJUCO JO pIEME UB SPUBLLIWOdS] S1VD ORGSR 10BHUOD JesAauoc g | 000'SL6'0% vav
wmz:wm‘_ aapIwwoD) cc_.am:_m_.,w |esodold @y} uo paseg AW 01 BL/0Z/Z 1eah g M wo\wb:ou unowe -dsuei] S991AI0S
unesw 334 —gL/ZL/L ‘Bunssw pieog ge4 |jun pauaisp 1apirold adiAeg panocidde fenuajod) KT JoBHUOD $90IM8S -
pieod — g1/91/L "AIN 0} pieme panosdde pieog — gL/0z/z | SUBI]-BIEd PRJOBIUCD pieog LZ/0E/Y 81/9/s lesh ¢ AN a4y Jisuesjeled
d
‘aL/BLIS MY pieoq S1vD Ag panoidde sem
UOISUSIXa JOBNJUOD Yluow auo-gl/gL/p pajenobsu Bueq
10BJUOD JB3A-RINW MBU Y - 9L/9/G "JOBRIJUOD M3U B JO 1
|eacidde paeoq Buipuawwooal sl 394 — 9L/Z1L/S "pieog 9L/ L/S uo pieoqg fidde TR
Aq panaoidde joenuos jeba — 91/21/5 “|emaual Buubis S1v9 Aq panoaddy 9LILLIS i _A_SE N .Un_n_< soomiag Mhmu.un?_w 0
alojaq [enoldde/mainal 1o} Joenuod up abueyd [euy B | joenuoq sasiaeg [ebeq panoiddy 204 JaulElay slpeqy jeba IAI9S
paniwgns uojybiaID-gL/6L/6 “PAZIEUY JOBIUOI—QL/0E/6 1eak (g) sauyy pleog 81/81/G 9L/6L/S Ajiuopy 2 Aespuq Jnsuo) jeba7
1
fousby
2y} jo sjuawysidwosoe
‘S|lemaual Jjuowl 3} 9sBOMOUS
-aAlem] () 1noy 0} dn Joy uondo sy yum ‘syjuow z| pue ‘Ajunwwios ay ul
10J 000°GZL$ JO JUNOLWE 8y} Ul 8Q 0} UOIBPUSLULLODSI puelq aalsed e ulRjuieWw
pleme JOBIUOD Yim ‘8ousiog 1Mooy S uuy Buuoos | PUE PINg ‘8seq a_:mmm_ut
189UBIH (03d) semwwoy uonenjeas jesodoig sy m._mmowmwwmo%m_ %w_mm _MNU
Aq perenjeas asem yaiym siesodold g paaigoal S w0 P mc_u.:_uw_ .ﬁmEm L.wo%a
'ssald Apjeap syl pue 9)ed0ApY 9yl Ul pasiueApe T ) 8L/aLl6 1eak sad mmM_Ewm
pue suuy ubisep oiydelb zg o} uas sem uoneNDIjOS pue Bupesio Ul S1vD parciddy wnwixe 32U ugisag
d4d Uy - 81/.Z/L 'peaociddy pieog — g8L/8L/6 0] SoUB]S|ISSE BplA0ld pieog BL/0E/6 81/L/0L 000'sZ1$ o0y d4d alydein
9
JOBHUOD [EMBLSY
Buipuawiwosey JeeT 0ID 995 'BLALEE N LUV
jo pouad [emeuss o) |eroiddy pieog Speeu joeiUOD
= Ll/kZ/e T10BJUOD JO |EMBUal paAocidde pieog
= LL/LZ/E 1PenuoD [emausy Bulpuswiwoosy Jepen 030 AR (6dd)
‘6L/LES alqejieAe ¥LieL/g uo !
ML m:_,... 20 Poliee (R Lol oy pRne gy s|lemaual oelljan e6 Jod soud auljoseny
| 1end | | !
pileog — /L/0Z/c ‘@ouspuodsanod (B uo paidod . s 6 d ok 2
SeM 9SeyoIng d-0 8y} pue oenEn4 yum poubis wia)sAs buisuadsip B6L/ILEIE Jeah auo 0} pieme = Xe} + 88} pue [@saiq 19BU0D
{ e : 120y ayy u sjedioned NI} [emauaul G/M HUOD panrocidde | wpe ge0'0 $ 104 joB[UOD SIVD P J-0 Juior
pue pazjjeul _w@s joenluoy — 8L/9zZ/¢ Uslied .b_.o 0} Aus ejeledes e 1eak auo Joy 1eak z [lounog + SIdO ‘uole)|oljos usued aulocBa biie
Aq panoidde ‘oeijjeny Aq joenuod paubisse sem | seuopejolos jany pLoz Ul | parociddy Wweuny | oNe d-0 | mes oy | usued A0 eA | g0 liose p
IO Ploysuely jeyy uogeounou pealeoay — 8LIE/0L | S1vD papnioul ystied Ao pleog BLILE/EO | wLILOMLL 29ud 110 oet]|enyg Aady | [9S31Q7 |9nd
1K 18d £/7'959¢ = 1eah sad ¥20Z
'LL/€Z/Z U0 WINPUSPPY BIAINO SaSUCASAL | ¢ \g97eq 10 SjuaLuAed 7 . ubnoiur | (sasng Bio L)
ino yum 21/0z/g Ag esey enp sauinbu| “Z1/z/e NoEQ L1298 1500 (210 (Zv '2|epsno2s) sieah
A 008°LLZ'¥$ D [eloL dic de i aseyound/
anp sjesodold “suonmysul |epueRUl S|dNNW 0} PaysIos ‘pouad Jeak 2 1ano Aeg -s1e9k 10D |ejide) mw Ec_ SueS
d4Y = L1/8/2 "sesng B9 01 10} st Bujpueuly “lercidde oy sesng Biio 01 “LULZIE / 1o} sasng 219nd c%ﬁ ¢ 1
PJEOq [N} 0} BAOW O] WYl panoidde 394 - L1/9L/E "S8SNG |  soueuly sseydIng/osesT] parocidde lesaiq Bio eoLaWy SAususy e
Bito 01 jo Buioueuy pancisdde pieog — Z1L/1Z/E sng |eyden pleog ¥Z0Z190 | L0z idv | Ol sdueul jo oueg dd4y Buioueuiy
apIAOl alje e awe adA uonduoasa
SIUBLILIOD | SOION = papiAoid panoiddy eq 3jeq o N T ndussaq
1oNpold /S82IAIRS pieog pug ueis ILTIVEY Y 1uo9 L ITVET

syjuoL ¢ 0) | UIylIm uoljdy pieog Buipuad syoafoid = anig

_ mou [eroiddy pieog spesu | Waj| Uondy = MO|[@A

| 6L0z ‘sl Asenuep

pieog S1v9 103 Bupsi Juswiaindoid S1VD




A
‘sgoud swes 1e / |/1£/8 ge/Le8 129k ze/LEl8
NIy} JOBIUOD pusixa yBnoayy LLILLI8 18d 000'0028 nuy} s|emausl
0} paaibe teadpoos s|emaual niyy st S11509 Jeaf BUO Z /M
‘uliByaIN () ® 1esfpoon) (z) e leak 1e8ApooD) | sbesany 910z 0Z/LE/8 NI} SIeak
‘auoysebpug (1) woy spig ¢ panwosy S1vyD Buuado pig auU0 g /M yim € 40} JoBIUOD
LL/ZZ/9 "Jopuan 8|gIsuodsal pue aAISUOdSal 1SamO| BU) SEM LL/EL/L penoidde 34 sieaf ¢ 10} | PEHUODY | e i | (soueuayurep)
auo)sabpug eyl psulusiep sem 1| -£1/0g/9 ‘euoisabpug LLBLIL 10BIUOD juaung (sieah ¢ ‘suonesado au soesng 10}
0} JOBAUOD JO pJEME UB puawWwodal sidag jusweinooid LLi8LIL panoiddy leiu| 1041809 188) all] seslawy Addng
pUB “JIBW SLVO-LL/EL/L “LL/gL/L U0 panoiddy pieog panoiddy pleog pieog 0z/Le/8 LLILI6 000'009% | ouoiseBpug | [eusien 8seaT] alll
L
SAS YAV 8 OdV "INV e B
doj 8beJen0) ouBUUIEW fueue Aueuep S8dIAIeg
‘BL/LE/L MUY 8L/L/8 Woy SWaISAS VAY B OdY AV | Auelep @ soueusjuiepy aLILLIL B ‘sanueLEM b M Joddng | yoje|pRIN0Y
loj abessncd Aueliem pue poddns yos) msual o) [eaoidde ‘woddng yoa | panoiddy ‘uoddns a1 alemyos Y3 10}
pieoq Buipuad way| - 8L/gL/L '8L/LLIL UO panoiddy pieog | gL/zL//L panoidde 34 pieog 6LILEIL 8L/LI8 jouieaksuo | YOJBNSINOY | somies alemjjosg
"dd4 8y Jo sjuaswelinbal [eojuyos) ay} 183w penitugns
sjesodoud ay) y Bunwisisp uy Apealb (D3d) saniwwod
uopeniead |esodosd SI1yD diBy M SOUBISISSE  SIUL
‘Jow ale syuswalinbal pue spsau uonleoypads |eoUYDe]
pue A0S S1VO @Insug o) paalaoal sjesodoud sy Jo maias)
[e21UY08) Byl Ul Sluswpeda JUSWINI0IY PUB || S1VD juawdojaasq
ISISSE OS[B [|IM JUB)NSUCO BY] "S1vD AQ pasnianpe aq o) 81/91/8 panoidde 394 . uonesyoadg
dd¥d UB 10} uonn(os [BDILYDS) BIBMIOS B 10} Suoiedynads SLMzI8 ) ouj shg dy3
[ealuyosl pue (MOS) Mom jo edoos pajelep e 8L/LT/8 panoiddy Bupinsuo) LERITNEYS
dojeasp |im JueynsuoD BYL "81/1Z/g Uo parciddy pieog perciddy pseog pieog 6L/08/p 8L/L/6 PLP'v6$ Joanju| d3y aiemijog
"YOBD SYJUOW-Z | 10} Maual
0} suondo z Yym joBHUOD Jesh-g OU| ‘seolneg AlLnoas sS|emaual S3JIAIBS
IBSIOAA O} PapJemME J0BJUOD AJUNDS — §L/GL/L UD piemE "UOIIED0| "PA|g BPUO|H L/ELILL Jeak-auo 1502 |Benuue *Ju| ‘sa2InIag pJens
jeuibuo paaciddy pleog pieog ||ny 0) aAow 0} pancidde 0522 SL1VD 1B saolneg panociddy Z40 .l 000°2£Z% Ajunoag saolAIeg
99IWWoy 394 — 81/g/LL parcidde pieog - gL/EL/LL pens Alunoss - 1/ #2 pieog 6LILEIZL 6LILIL “xouddy J3SIaM a4y Ajunoag
S
SJUBLUIWOY | SOION papiaold panoiddy ajeq ajeq Wy awepn adA] uondiaseg
10Npoly [SadlAleg pieog pug uels Jopusp juon adlAleg

SUjUOW € 0} | UIyiM uoljoy pieog Bulpuad sjoelold = an|g

_ mou [eaoiddy pieog speau [ Wa)| UoOY = MO||2A

[ 610z ‘') Auenuer

pleog S1VyD 404 bunsi juswainsoid S1VD




“Waem siy) I18)e| JUSS B4 [|IM pue
2L 0 pesjsul sesng g o aseyaind sy} jos|jal 0} pabueyo
ag |Im "O'd 8y} wswebeuew Ja4 '9LOZ "08Q Ul [eacidde
pieog souis Buipued 'o'd  31EPAN — ZLfLg/e (PIoy

pIq ay) uo us| } . . pouad fanijeqg
uo) $8SNQ § 40} Od NSS! 0] 0TD WOl Hd panoidde suswubissy omw_w.w mmuwﬁmw YiuowW g4 0 9}
Buniemy —LL/LL/p ‘stiuow gL si ajep Kisalep =g amal e e
' 6 R LULLIL 0Z0Z My 0Z'L22' L1183
8yl "O'd Dulpuss 210j8q wayl woy ojul wy Ang 30 yaom sieah G Jano sauawe use
uo Buplepy "saesng g o} B9 0} ysam S|y} panssi 9L10Z/ZL 210z pa19pIo 8q pappe (g) sesng
aq |Im [ "O'd Buipuad — L1/2L1L — By 03 Juss "O'd wmm”wﬂu mw 990/AON panss i Mwmu% 9 | 4 soud snq Jed €Ll
L1/12]L “SOUBUSIUIBI S1VD AQ PONSORI USRS ABY | oupacgncg ool | peaosddy | ULAIBAISP | 198G | gossenting | 1PSOIPBEE | eoq 19$91Q
S8SNg § |2 1.yl Pauou Sem juswWwsInNdold — 6L/E/L es 08/'Lzp$ :0oud Jun sng pieog sasng g sey '0'd JBpI0 g 271 ‘B Buijjoy S3|21Y3A
‘B119]01d pUB suone}s
18K|4 MaN ‘QAE WOl SPIQ £ PaAIROSY S1VD — LL/6LIOL p— BuiBieys
‘g)ep-0} 9PEW USa] SBY PJEME JO) UOREPUSWILLODA) e oL2aje
ON ‘paujwlislep usaq Jou sey pig 9|qisuodsal pieme Buibleyo m. Sul pue
pue aAisuodsal 1Semo| 8yl "MaIAS] Japun [N SJB PaAISOal 6L0Z 0 a)ep au} auo pue sng suone}s .W e} P, P
SPIG € IV — LLFL/LL leacidde 1o pieoq jiny o) wall ey} ‘zz a94 Aq | wouy siesk U0 10} 1500 Bub. abuey Alayeg
aAOW 0} PRJoA T84 "AAg AQ papiugns d dd A e IpusIX3z/m
1 pIq anIsuodsal pue aq o) Alealpeg | § xeu By nun xouddy SHinsie Papuaixzy/
peold 1samo| By} 0} S3SN( 100} GE D938 € Jo aseyound ayy ‘QLILIE 10} pasn SPZ'IBEZS 309 (use)
10} JORIUCD JO PJEME UB PIPUSWIWOOSI S1vO — Bupesw | ‘suopels Bubieyo ssnoy | uo panss| Od | g ueo b € lieysul (¢) sesng
394 - 8L/ZL/L "S9SNQ € IO} QAQ 0} pieme paroidde |  -uig |lEIsul pue sBues 8LL/L 10800 spuseang | PUe sasng o100
pieog - gL/9L/L ‘6L/zz/z Aq alep AlsAlep yum sasng | Aayjeq papusixa/m 100} Gg panciddy ¢ 10} 30Ud 230313 40015 : =
993 € jo 19pJo 3y} 10) AAd O} PARIWGNS "Q'd — 8L/L/E | 'SeSng ouUlse ¢ aseydind pieog £2/9L/L0 8L/9L/L0 pig |e10L £ sasng Bujljoy S3|IIY3A
‘218 ‘yoieas
VS pue ‘sjeoyiua) Bulkqqo ‘apiysa auy ur sjuauodwo) it 119010001 ¥# saoeds
JO 1817 9, ‘eouswy Ang 87 ‘aseyoind syl Jo} paulelqo o Eﬂ.ow._ €101 Penuo) JME
aJe SJUBWIND0P V14 seudoidde ay) sinsua 0} JOPUBA SIU} s ity 2IBIS v ssed zi SUEBA
U Bupiiom ARUBLING S1 JUBWAIND0Id S1VD *LL90LODOYH YRAUOD SIS V] ouy 9995L88IS | (sunosen) | euleses | 40 iRy
1oBUOD 2JBIS BUBISINOT BU) JO YO SB[ SNg BAJEaL) |  WOL 8SEUDING 0) pUsU| LLbiL Aep gg1 - ,wmm.,m ’
lopuan panoidde sy} woy paseyoind ag |IM S3JOIYBA panoiddy 8L/08/L 8L/5Z/8 yoes ssjeg 0TS vav
paiamod suljoseb essyl °gi/gl/L uo peaciddy pieog | g1L/zL/L peroidde I pieog palewnss | pajeunss | zz'z5z'e9$ | SN SAIRAID | Buyoy S32IYaA
‘019 *yoleas
WYS pue ‘sleoyiue) Buiigqo ‘slolysA ay) Ul sjusuodwon | PRIUOY 81elS v Bu) — LL90L000VY# | sa0eqs
40 1817 % ‘Bouswy Ang “'a' ‘aseyoind Sy} Joj PauULlqO |  LIOJ BSEUDING O} puslul 10 119081 RUeY oIMZ
ale SUBWNOOp Y14 eleudoidde sy} 8INsus 0) JOPUSA SIU} soye) EIS V' ssed zl SUEA
Lm Buiiom Ajus.uno st jusweInoold S1VD ‘LL90L000FH# |  81/9L/g paroidde T ouY |e101 (suyjosep) Sann’ | Nsueap-eseq
1JejUOD SlBIS BUBISINOT 8Y) JO JJO SBIBS SNg aAleal) gLz Rep 051 [AArATA R | vav L
lopuen panoidde sy woy peseyoind Bq (M B|RIYAA 8L/12/8 panciddy 61/10/Z 8LISz/8 yoeg S9IES S01S vav
pasamod suljoseb syl °gl/Lz/g uo peaciddy pieog . panosddy pieog pieog pelewisy | psjewnse | zz'zGz'e9g | sSnd sAneald | Buyoy SI2IYsA
SJUBWILIO? | S3ION i papiAold paaoiddy ajeq aleq iy auweN adA) uonduasaqg
: . ; Janpo.d [s8dlAleg pleog pu3z HE}S JOpUBA juon BoIAIDG

Syjuoul ¢ 03 | Ulylm uoljoy pieog Bulpuad syoeloid = enig

_ mou _m>9aa< pl

BOg SPaau / Wa}| UOHDY = MO||2A

| 610z ‘sl Asenuep

pieog S1V9 10} Bunsi] juswainosoid S1VD




JOBJUOD JO PJEME BUIpUSWLLIoIal

uoneoldal gpy 2 abelols pnojo ‘Jusweoe|dal QOGRS papuaLLLLoIa)
Jan8| 030 s ‘aIMUsA | Juelsul ‘sejepdn JA G ‘uonnjos Jaates dmyoeq -810Z# day Jane 030 Pkl
pepuawwooal D3d's|esodoid | JaAI@S BUO Ul ||B puB SBpnjou| ‘ieaies dnxyoeq 8LIZLIO sejbojouyoa] | A4
€ POAIS08) pue pasiuanpy - 8L0Z 4dy | Bumisixe $1vD Joj walshs || dn-yoeq Jesh g |  zsosLoz od £2/0£/9 2LILIL 8z£'8z$ alnjuap Janteg dn joeg i
‘papaau se 030 8y} Aq paubIsse sySE] "osiw 19E1U0D
BYI0 puE SOUEPINB ‘SISAJBUE ‘LONE}NSUOD oL/alo 1esh suQ Bunnsuon 03D 8Y) 0 M.M.__Bm_wmwf_ [e10ads YH
"SUOIOUNy YH paz|epads JaLio pue | ‘soApe jo Aem Aq S821A8S/S80UN0Sal  HH Z018L0Z Od (1y pg8) HH joequod
souglsisse yH BuninsuoD g0z UNE | sanebpsanul [enuspyuoo sapiaoid JUBINSUOD | njuoguspum | 6LILE/S 8L/L/9 000°0S$ | WeJeAl eeg juejjnsuod yH
P3|y 89 UBD SUOoRISOd JUBDIEA 'SISEQ papasu Se uo Loz 1oeUoo Bupnsuon MH L
[un suonesado Ajlep yum 10joag HH | SUOISIAS! Ndd R S8Iollod ‘Bujuien dwa ‘'supne | gapsLoz od 1A oMy (a4 o) uojiINoIN joenpuoy
mau Ag papasu souelsissy LL0Z 4dy | ‘smeinel 80ue|dwod/m S8DISS WH SOPIACId | 4uoD uspum 6L/EZl¥ LLIvEly 000°S¥$ euu| jugjinsuo)d ¥H
"188A/000°8$ 40 gLozizie v1jo dnoig
sesuadxe J02JIp JO SAISNPUI ‘000°0S$ (Butkaqo|) seoinies [EUONEINPT PUE SUOKEISY |  ¢z08L0Z Od WY Xep ABajens sllejjy g
junowe joenuod  XeN  8LOZ dBN | ‘sllejyy  [eluswuwanon  sapinoid  JUBYNSUOD | puopuspum | SL/LEZL gLLL 000°05$ ulaynog Suoljejay jJusWuIsA0D
'6L0Z B “uonisod 1200 paxg uoisod
AON UBNoIY) 02 AON UO SHIOM uibaq | Bupessdo JoIU0 SLYO B of yoseas oy Ul 011N om 10} S9OIAID
0} 6l JOQWBAON UO JOPUBA 0} JUBS | LES) JUSWSBRUBW I0USS S} PUB S1VO ISISSE |  |e70107 Od WY XEW ‘Auedwon 009D S1vD 10} IAIBG
SEM pa800.d 0} 82140N — 8L0Z ‘6L AON | 01 Woddns |euoissajold apincid 0) JUBHNSUOD | 1uon uspLp 6LIGLILL 8LI0Z/LL 000'sz$ ® NO2S |IIM yoleag aAlndaxy
‘seafojdws anljisuss A1aies 1o} S30IAI8S B0IAIBS JO BAjIsUBS Ajojes 10} $30A8S Y R 0
‘lemausy | asnge 2ouUBlsgNs/ |0Yo2|y @ BruQ Joj Sa0INIBS 810z Od suyjuow z|. wpy Aued paylL
leaf aup 'ziL0z uebag juojy Bug | lojensiiwpy Bukled piyl pajepuew Vid | nuos usmim 6LI0E/ 2L/LIS 000'GL$ NSHI € loyoo|y @ Bnug
U0 PIIOM Buteq s| juswnoop uonejuswa|duy| JuejNsuon
joejuUOD '8L/0Z/E6 PuUa pue gi/cL/g | weiBoid pue  susws|g  welbold  3gd
uo ulfaq 0} @2lIas Jo) NOlBId O} Juss | BjEnieAa (M ASL) SJoum ‘SEDIAISS LONEN|EAT $$18L0Z Od Wy Xe sajeossy SaJlAlag uonenjeay
Jsje] pasdold O} S01ON — 81/0L/g | weiBold 3gg epicid  [IM JUBYNSUOD | nuon usuLm 8LILEIZL gL/EL/e ovi'czs Q HopLld Em._mohn_ 34da
"diysiapes| SLyD puE pieog
"8je|dwod 0} syiuow g Apjewixoidde | 0} juas aq (m Lodss [Bui4 “Apnjs uonesuadwod $82InIag
aq p|noys aulswi] "S1 v 10} [esodoud Alejes 1o} syexeuw Jejiuns o] siedwod pajeuILLID) Hjausg
pepiugns  JsayBejeo  —  8L/0Z/LL | pue diysiepes| S1WD UM 183W 0} JUBHNSUCD | Huod usnum [Bun 6L/LIL 000'S#$ laybejjen Apmig dwoy Aejeg
"Pazijeuld JOBIUOD — BL/ZLIY
‘81/LE/Z) ybnouy) pusixe pue (e8¢ (£8¢ ¥d) sBummeaq |enydasuon
-GZ9'T1$ JO JunOWe JUaLND 0} G9/'8LE | -Hd "8NS HeW|e)) / BUBLOD Je sjuswarcidul| 1508L0Z Od WY XE ou] ‘aliog HEWIEBA BUBLIOD
PPY :popudWy JOBNJUOD -8L/92Z/L | GNH NSUBIL WLSIU| BU) BpIACID [IM JUBYNSUOD | nuon usuum | BL/LE/ZL 8LISLIY 06€'Le$ '8 @0Juopy asv
panosddy ajeq ajeq awenN
SjUBIWOY PapIACId S92IAIBS 039 pug Jelg junoy J0puap uopduase(q

"epusbe bueaw pJeog 91/0z/zZ| UO 84 0} Po|Npayas
S| UONEPUSLULIOISY PIEMY JOBIUOD -

0F JequusAopn

030 Aq j09/0id pano.dde jsejej sayeaipur siyblybiy mojjek

|
AN

Aq enp g |m siesodolq siesodosd |enuejod m.nm:ﬂ%
AUdhinu 0} PaIdlios Uoaq Sey dd ~ 9L/OLLL R £/000'v$ 153
‘panleoal  siesodoud ¢ Buowe jsaybly paioos S80IAI8S 2IEMLOS U0 ZM saa4 Busoy
_ . d 000° -
oym '01Bo7 juslerod o} 394 Aq penocidde piemy pue BunsoH sapnjoul uﬂﬂwwﬁﬂ sieak ¢ m.m.f%%%m.%m o160 mmm_u\_,w_mm 1SeQ-9y
— 9L/SLIZL "sUsgam mau payoune| — 210z Anp - uBisag-ay 8Hsqem pseog BLIVERZL | LLILOMLO s1ewns3 jusjeno) 2)sgEM mu_mnmg
- M
L _ Papinoid paaoiddy 918 ajeq [y o awepN mu%.,_. uonduasag
: | E Y] o : ] - - b | : \ Ci
FMaoO SRION Jonpoid /seojAleg paeog puz ueys 1 Jopusp | juop 2oIMeg

SUjuoW € O} | UIYIIM UORDY pieog Buipuad sjoalolg = enig

_ mou _m>o.Ea< pieog spasau | waj| :o_uo< Bo__m>

| Loz ‘sl Asenuer

_pieog S1v9 1o} buysi Juswainsold S1VD




(BnlioL juswabeuey
wl
“fouesen OO0 Bul|y Uim S)SISSE pUB 00D Ined) 9711
SaINp Jaylo pue OO0 | wus sy Ag suoneiado SiyD Jo yBISISAC w%ﬁm%ﬁn Wy xepy ‘sauysnpu| | 40IUSS S1VYD 0] JOSIAPY
wuau| 8y Isissy — gL0Z 18qo1d0 | Joj seoinas [euoissajoud sapiaold JUBYNSUOD | juos uanum 6L/8Z1Z 8L/zz/oL 000°0S$ aby maN suonesadQ 10juag
"S|SEQ papaau
SB Ue U0 ‘QvyD pue JsBeuep juswsindold Bugnsuog
"SUONOUNy JUBWaIN20Id | Byl Aq peubisse Se SySB) JUSWaIND0Id IBY)0 BLIOLIE jusulainooid o
pezjeads Jaylo pue SOUEJSISSE | PUB ‘SBOIMSS ||BD-UO, Uim Buiiom Ajjesiyoads Z0L8L0Z Od 1wy xepy Zapueuiay jugjinsuoy
uswWwaInd0id Buginsuoy — gLOZ 3088 | "Seoiss JusWaInoold sepinoid JUBINSUOD | nuod uspum 61L/6/6 8L/0L/6 000°05$ Auiey juswainaoid
"PINId 1SNEUX3 [@sa1q PUe 10 {pinyy
auIgin| oYNeIpAH 10) pIq 1S8MO| Sem Jsneyxe
jong zenBiy ‘esealD) [9AUM B PINId |osaip
uoISSIWSURI| ‘I Joloy IO Jesn - FIERBOB RS 10 BUIGIN}
10§ PIq }S3MO| B} SEM [I) TSB0D UNS — 104 000'05% olneIpAH)
'SJoNpoId PalelRY (10 Jo Aleliep pue dofion & 079°9e3
sseyoind ay) Joj sie|ddns ojesedas RIE0E Mof=2q HELE|
Z O} pieme piq mau paroidde "azealjUe pUe |0 Jojow Bl swey z esayy | Sf PloUsaip ZanbBily
pieog —LL/LL/L “ALouyne ploysaiy 6102 Jeak au) 1o} 000'0.§ Alelewixoidde | SE ‘@ncidde
03D 8U) UM BB PuB GL/LE/ZL MU | 1B pajewnsa siaoud se ‘leacidde loj pieog o) Dy 9lge
8L/L/L Jo pouad s Joj Jeok suo Joy | oF |m asay) ‘sAep gg 1xau sy uim payonos | STO3D SLVD
pamaual aq [|m SJOeHUOD 8saY | “jend 8 [IM 1] MBU V/ “PIq 8q |Im ‘seseaioul | Emw__ww_ L (esea1b
zanBiy woy syonpoud Joj 029°98S pue goud saybiy o) snp ‘pamausl jou sway| S|EMaLS) [@8ym pue _
}seo) ung weoy) sipnpold 10} §90°LLS 1eaf suo pinjy "suel nbu
0} 1500 |enuue pajoslosd ay) Buuamo) "9SB3.0U| J0f SUOHEINDIED |dd | # sey peiuoy onsyjuAs asueuAUIEH
Agaiay) ‘ebesn pejedippue  [euibuo apinoid 0] Spaau JOpUS/ ‘[EMausl Su) Jo awl) ‘BLILEZL ‘llo Jeag)) sjonpo.d Um‘.__m_wm_
BU) UL SSB| LYonW 8. /10Z JAD 10} | 1B |dd U} U0 paseq Jusunsnipe eoud ‘Zz/9L/L | NIU ZL/LLIL S90'Z1% -
Sjonpold paje@y (10 au} Joj abesn sy ybnouy) Jo spouad Jeak (1) auo anissesons panoldde ISE0D g1 sayddng P
1BU)} pauILWLIBIEp USaq SBY )| — LLISLIZL () Jnoy o} dn a|qejieae suondo |Emausy pieog 6LILEZL BLILIL ung [BuRIEN 1{e]
SJUBLULLOY | SBION papiAoid panoiddy ajeq ajeq Juy aweN | adAl uonduasaq
}oNpo.d [sadlAiag pieog pu3z yes 10puap uoy ERITVETS

syjuow ¢ 03 | ulyym uoljoy pieog Buipuad sjoaloid = anjg

_ mou [eaciddy pieog spasu / Wwiaj| UOIIOY = MO||eA

| 6L0z ‘si Arenuep

pieog S1V9 10} Buinsig juswiaindoid S1VI




